
PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017 AT 6:45 PM

CORDOVA CENTER COMMUNITY ROOMS A & B

AGENDA

If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, you may contact 424-6200 for assistance.

Full Planning Commission agendas and packets are available online at www.cityofcordova.net.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

Chair Tom McGann, Commissioners Scott Pegau, John Baenen, Allen 

Roemhildt, Mark Frohnapfel, Heath Kocan, and Nancy Bird

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (voice vote)

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR (voice vote)

a. Minutes of February 14, 2017 Regular Meeting .................................................................................Page 2

b. Record excused absence for Heath Kocan from the February 14, 2017 Regular Meeting

c. Record unexcused absence for John Baenen from the February 14, 2017 Regular Meeting

5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

6. CORRESPONDENCE

a. Letter from Dan Nichols......................................................................................................................Page 6

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS

a. Guest Speakers

b. Audience comments regarding agenda items (3 minutes per speaker)

8. PLANNER’S REPORT ..........................................................................................................................Page 7

9. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

a. Lakeview Drive Road Rename............................................................................................................Page 8

b. Proposal for Lot 20, Block 23, Original Townsite ..............................................................................Page 14 

c. Site Plan Review – Dan Nichols .........................................................................................................Page 44

d. Chapter 16 Building Codes Discussion...............................................................................................Page 81

10. PENDING CALENDAR

a. April 2017 Calendar ............................................................................................................................Page 89

11. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

12. COMMISSION COMMENTS

13. ADJOURNMENT

Chair

Tom McGann

Commissioners

Scott Pegau

John Baenen

Allen Roemhildt

Mark Frohnapfel

Heath Kocan

Nancy Bird

City Planner

Samantha Greenwood

Assistant Planner

Leif Stavig



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

February 14, 2017

Page 1 of 4

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

FEBRUARY 14, 2017 AT 6:30 PM

CORDOVA CENTER COMMUNITY ROOMS A & B

MINUTES

1. CALL TO ORDER

Vice Chair Tom McGann called the Planning Commission Regular Meeting to order at 6:30 PM on 

February 14, 2017 in Cordova Center Community Rooms A & B.

2. ROLL CALL

Present for roll call were Vice Chair Tom McGann and Commissioners Scott Pegau, Allen Roemhildt, 

Mark Frohnapfel, and Nancy Bird. John Baenen and Heath Kocan were absent.

Also present was City Planner Samantha Greenwood and Assistant Planner Leif Stavig.

1 person was in the audience.

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

M/Pegau S/Bird to approve the agenda.

Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-0.

Yea: McGann, Pegau, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel, Bird

Absent: Baenen, Kocan

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

a. Minutes of January 10, 2017 Public Hearing

b. Minutes of January 10, 2017 Regular Meeting

M/Frohnapfel S/Roemhildt to approve the consent calendar.

Stavig said that he forgot to add “record excused absence for Nancy Bird from January 10, 2017 Regular 

Meeting.” There was no objection to the addition to the consent calendar.

Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-0.

Yea: McGann, Pegau, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel, Bird

Absent: Baenen, Kocan

5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

6. CORRESPONDENCE

a. State DOT Public Notice

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS

a. Guest Speakers

b. Audience comments regarding agenda items

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

2 of 89

planner2
DRAFT



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

February 14, 2017

Page 2 of 4

Bret Bradford, 402 Railroad Row, spoke in opposition of agenda item 9a. The lots in question are 

up against a cliff. The lots up above them are original townsite lots with buildings built around 1910, 

before there was any zoning or lot lines. There is a natural windbreak created by trees along the lots. 

Several years ago, a property owner located three lots south of his went to the city to purchase the 

top portion of a similar lot. Development of the lots could degrade existing property values and there 

could be issues with pollutants coming up over the hill. He urged the commission to recommend 

not disposing the lots and he said if they wanted to dispose of the top of the lots, he would be 

interested in purchasing the portion behind his house. 

8. PLANNER’S REPORT

Greenwood said the Great Land Trust donation was still being negotiated. She explained that City 

Council had originally planned to put the Power Creek parcel out for proposals, but they changed their 

mind. She said that the water department would be testing the ferry’s drinking water. She said they had 

been preparing write-ups in case there is any federal infrastructure money. Roemhildt verified that the 

nonconforming code was effective. 

9. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

a. Disposal of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision

M/Bird S/Roemhildt to recommend to City Council to dispose of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park 

Subdivision as requested in the letter of interest from Eagle Contraction as outlined in Cordova 

Municipal Code 5.22.060B by negotiating an agreement with Eagle Contracting to lease or purchase 

the property.

Bird said she had wondered about the same questions raised by Bradford. Bird said it sounded like 

the lot lines would have to be addressed. Greenwood said that a title search would clear it up and 

costs would have to be negotiated. Roemhildt said that in the past they have not sold nearby land 

because of the greenbelt issue. He said that disturbing the ground may affect the foundations of the 

houses. Pegau said that the property was a steep cliff and he doesn’t see how it could be developed 

and meet setbacks without a lot of rockwork. 

Frohnapfel said he wanted to refer it back to staff to resolve the property line issue. He said it was 

not up to the commission to determine whether or not someone could use the property; it was 

whether or not the property is for sale. Greenwood said that the city does not have the funds to 

resolve the issue and that typically the title search would be a part of the disposal process. Staff did 

not know the issue existed until they received a letter of interest. In a typical land sale these sorts of 

title issues are sorted out during closing. Stavig said that there is a substantial amount of land the 

city shows as available that the city doesn’t even have title to yet. Greenwood pointed out that this 

was similar to the Section Line easement they discovered on the Power Creek property; all of these 

issues get sorted out during the disposal process, so that the costs for sorting the issues out can be a 

part of the negotiations.

McGann said that you can’t do something on your property that adversely affects the neighbor’s 

property. He said that just because it is available does not obligate the commission to dispose of it. 

Bird said that all of the properties along the hill were shown as available and that maybe they should 

look at making all of the lots not available. 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

3 of 89

planner2
DRAFT



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

February 14, 2017

Page 3 of 4

M/Bird S/Roemhildt to amend the motion to recommend to City Council to dispose of portions 

of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision as outlined in Cordova Municipal Code 

5.22.060 by requesting sealed proposals to lease or purchase the property. 

Upon voice vote, amendment passed 5-0.

Yea: McGann, Pegau, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel, Bird

Absent: Baenen, Kocan

Upon voice vote, main motion passed 3-2.

Yea: McGann, Baenen, Roemhildt

Nay: Pegau, Frohnapfel

Absent: Baenen, Kocan

b. International Residential Code Discussion

Greenwood asked the commission if they should even adopt an International Residential Code 

(IRC). She wanted it to be clear that just because they may adopt the Alaska Housing Finance 

Corporation (AHFC) IRC does not mean they are following their rules for inspections. If the city 

adopts the code there will be no enforcement. When people sign building permits, they are saying 

that they will abide by all applicable codes. Pegau said he wants to have permits and some kind of 

code; he isn’t sure that it needs to be the 2012 IRC. Roemhildt said that a builder should build a 

home to a standard that they can sell it or that’s on them. He doesn’t see enforcing codes as a city 

responsibility. Frohnapfel said he was a proponent of building codes and building inspections, and 

he thinks it is good for new construction. Bird said with the nature of Cordova not having inspectors 

available and no enforcement she wants to encourage people to build to codes, but not adopt the 

codes. Unless people are wealthy enough to not get financing, they are already going to have to meet 

the AHFC codes. 

Greenwood said there were a couple AHFC amendments that she would be looking into to. They 

don’t have to abide by their codes and amendments; they can do what they want. McGann said he 

was very much in favor of adopting the code; in fact it was the reason he got on the commission. 

The current code is terrible and refers to things that have no relevance today. All new construction 

should be inspected. At least when people come in for a permit they have an incentive to do it right. 

It would also give contractors guidance. As a city, they should be establishing standards. Frohnapfel 

said that he agreed; not only does it protect the contractor, but it also protects the homebuyer. The 

commission concurred that they were in agreement to move forward with adopting the 2012 IRC 

with amendments. McGann said he didn’t think they needed to see other city’s amendments to the 

IRC as the AHFC was a good framework for them to work off of.  

c. Chair Election

Roemhildt moved to refer 9c and 9d back to staff. Motion died for lack of a second. 

Bird asked McGann and Pegau if they were still willing to serve and why they wanted to be chair. 

McGann said it was a pleasure to serve. Pegau said he was willing, but he looks at his travel 

schedule and the building codes and he thought it may be better for McGann to be chair. 

Roemhildt nominated McGann for Chair. 

McGann called for a roll call vote.

Upon roll call vote, McGann was elected Chair 5-0.

Yea: McGann, Pegau, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel, Bird

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

4 of 89

planner2
DRAFT



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

February 14, 2017

Page 4 of 4

Absent: Baenen, Kocan

d. Vice Chair Election

Bird nominated Pegau for Vice Chair. 

McGann called for a roll call vote.

Upon roll call vote, Pegau was elected Vice Chair 5-0.

Yea: McGann, Pegau, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel, Bird

Absent: Baenen, Kocan

10. PENDING CALENDAR

11. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Bradford thanked the commission for digging into agenda item 9a. He said they seem like a high-

functioning, cooperative board. Making all of the lots not available would have saved a lot of people’s 

headaches and city time and money. 

12. COMMISSION COMMENTS

Pegau said when he got on the commission they were talking about Titles 16, 17, and 18. He has always 

been hoping to finish the conversation and hopefully get those off the list.

Frohnapfel said it was time for him to bring up addressing. Pegau said that is why Lakeveiw Drive is 

being changed. 

McGann agreed with Pegau and said that a lot of time had been spent in the past on these portions of 

the city code. 

13. ADJOURNMENT

M/Pegau S/Frohnapfel to adjourn the Regular Meeting at 7:50 PM.

With no objection, the meeting was adjourned.

Approved:

____________________________

Tom McGann, Chair

____________________________

Leif Stavig, Assistant Planner 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

5 of 89

planner2
DRAFT



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

6 of 89



Planner’s Report
To: Planning Commission

From: Planning Staff

Date: 3/23/17

Re: Recent Activities and Updates

 Four building permits issued since the last meeting. 

 Write up for Trump funding for harbor and finishing priority roads that have been surveyed

 Copper River Watershed Lease for South fill lot will be effective May 1st.

 RFP for Lots 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision is out and proposals are due May 1st. 

 Completed ACWF loan applications for harbor and analysis of water production versus sewer 

discharge

 Completed scope of work application for Post LT2 work to include mini excavator.

 Provided information to the public on multiple inquiries about building, setbacks, and zoning 

regulations.

 Completed surface water usage data for state database.

 Working DEC on approval to use loan requirements for oil separator at baler. 

 Worked with DEC to get permission to submit for reimbursement more frequently to meet grant and 

submittal deadlines.

 Conference call with Safe Routes to School national partnerships. Provided information about 2013 

SRTS grant and 2017 ATAP award; placed on email list for future grant opportunities.

 Land Use permit for Breakwater Fill Lot for mobile kitchen.

 Land use permit for Breakwater Fill Lot and Odiak Slough for gull trapping.

 Performance Deed of Trust for residential developments on four lots on 8th Street was extended 

including milestones and time line.  

 Dan Nichols Performance Deed of Trust was extended for six months with milestones and timeline.

 Contacted AHFC about Alaska specific amendments. Spoke with the code expert and will provide 

update at meeting. 

 Contacted ATAP grant coordinator to provide new time frame for Adams Avenue grant project if City 

Council passes transfer from permanent fund. If everything goes perfect, the bid would be awarded 

May 18th.  City Council will vote at April 5th meeting.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

7 of 89



Lakeview Drive Road Rename

Page 1 of 6

AGENDA ITEM # 9a

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 3/28/2017

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 3/22/17

ITEM: Lakeview Drive Road Rename

NEXT STEP: Concurrence with Staff

      

_____ INFORMATION

__X__ MOTION

_____   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   

There are currently two roads in Cordova with two conflicting names: Lakeview Drive and Lake View 

Drive. 

Applicable code:

13.06.040 - Road naming.

A. The planning department upon a finding that an existing road name conflicts with or duplicates 

another existing road name thereby causing confusion as to the exact location of either road or 

the road has not been assigned a name, shall officially rename the road(s) using the procedures 

set forth in Section 13.06.040(B) and (C).

B. The planning department shall send written notice to the record owners of any land accessed by 

any road identified in Section 13.06.040.A. Such notice shall contain, at a minimum, the 

following:

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

8 of 89



Lakeview Drive Road Rename

Page 2 of 6

1. A description or identification of the road(s) and property in question;

2. A statement that the name of the road accessing the property duplicates the name of another 

in the city or that the road has not been assigned a name;

3. A statement or copy of the criteria to be used for naming or renaming roads;

4. A determination by the planning department and public safety department that one or more of 

such roads must be named or renamed, identifying which road or roads are required to be 

named or renamed; and

5. A notice of the time in which the record owners of land assessed by such road or roads 

identified for naming or renaming shall respond by petition for naming or renaming the 

identified road(s).

C. Within thirty days of the mailing of the notice required under Section 13.06.040.B., the record 

owners of land accessed by any road required to be named or renamed may submit to the planning 

department a petition for naming or renaming roads containing the following:

1. Proposal of a name or new name for the road or roads required to be named or renamed.

2. Signatures of the record owners of a minimum of fifty-one percent of all land accessed by 

such road or roads.

3. If such owners of land cannot agree on one name, the Petition may contain a list of no more 

than three alternative names for any one road.

13.06.070 - Public hearing.

A. The planning commission shall hold a public hearing upon each properly submitted petition. Such 

hearing shall be held not less than ten days nor later than thirty days following the date of receipt 

of such petition and the applicant shall be notified of the date of such hearing.

Staff initiated the road name change as the duplicate names contradict the City Code. Staff selected 

Lakeview Drive (see attached location map) as the road to be renamed as it had been in existence for less 

time as the other road. After informing the residents that the road name would change, a majority of the 

residents produced a petition (attached) with the suggested new name of Sunnyside Drive. Pursuant to the 

City Code, the Planning Commission is required to have a Public Hearing concerning the petition.

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

The Planning Department has the authority to rename the road to Sunnyside Drive. No action is required 

of the commission, however staff would like concurrence from the commission to support their decision.

“I move to concur with the Planning Department’s determination to change Lakeview Drive to Sunnyside 

Drive.”

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

New street sign and staff time implementing the street name change.

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

1/30/17 – Notice was mailed to all property owners accessed by Lakeview Drive that road name would 

change and that a petition was due in 30 days.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

9 of 89



Lakeview Drive Road Rename

Page 3 of 6

2/23/17 – The city received a petition from property owners.

3/8/17 – Notice of Public Hearing was mailed to all property owners accessed by road.

  

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

N/A

VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES:

N/A

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

N/A

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

10 of 89



Lakeview Drive Road Rename

Page 4 of 6

ATTACHMENT A

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

11 of 89



L
ak

ev
iew

 D
riv

e R
o
ad

 R
en

am
e

P
ag

e 5
 o

f 6

A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

1
2

 o
f 8

9



Lakeview Drive Road Rename

Page 6 of 6

ATTACHMENT C

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

13 of 89



Proposal for Lot 20, Block 23, Original Townsite

Page 1 of 3

AGENDA ITEM # 9b

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 3/28/2017

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 3/22/17

ITEM: Proposal for Lot 20, Block 23, Original Townsite

NEXT STEP: Review Proposals and Provide Recommendation to City Council

      

_____ INFORMATION

__X__ MOTION

_____   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   

Requested Actions: Review proposals and give a recommendation to City Council

Legal Description: Lot 20, Block 23, Original Townsite

Property Address: 601 Sixth Street

Area: 4500 sq. ft.

Zoning: Low Density Residential

Attachments: Proposal Packet (The packet distributed to potential proposers)

Proposal from Carl and Jane Jensen

The request for proposals for this property began January 19th, 2017 and ended March 1st, 2017 at 10 AM. 

The City received one proposal for the property. Attached is the full proposal packet and the proposal. 

The proposed price from Carl and Jane Jensen was $18,001.00

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

14 of 89



Proposal for Lot 20, Block 23, Original Townsite

Page 2 of 3

In accordance with the Cordova Municipal Code, the Planning Commission will give a recommendation 

to City Council on the proposal.

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

“I move to recommend City Council approve the proposal from Carl and Jane Jensen for Lot 20, Block 

23, Original Townsite.”

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

The city would get lease revenue from disposal. 

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

11/4/16 – Letter of interest received from Carl and Jane Jensen.

12/13/16 – The Planning Commission recommended disposing of the lot by direct negotiation. From the 

approved minutes of the meeting:

M/Bird S/Baenen to recommend to City Council to dispose of a portion of Lot 20, Block 23, Original 

Townsite as outlined in Cordova Municipal Code 5.22.060 B by negotiating an agreement with Carl and 

Jane Jensen to purchase the property.

Frohnapfel said he doesn’t see a reason not to sell it as it is adjacent to their property and it is listed as 

available on the Land Disposal Maps. It would have to be sold at fair market value. Pegau verified that the 

lot was over 4,000 square feet. Baenen said the biggest issue was the terrain. Stavig said that the city owns 

three lots that are available there and the east half is sloping and the west half is fairly level. Baenen said 

that since the alley is only 14 feet wide, the access to the other lots is somewhat cut off. Stavig said that all 

of the lots would still have legal access. Roemhildt said they had talked in the past about access to those 

lots from the water tank. Bird said it seems fair to negotiate with the interested party. McGann considered 

if it would be worthwhile to put an easement on the west side of the lot to effectively make a wider right of 

way, but the commission chose not to add an easement.

Upon voice vote, motion passed 7-0.

Yea: McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel, Kocan, Bird

12/21/16 – City Council moved to invite sealed proposals for the property. From the approved minutes:

M/Beedle S/Burton to dispose of Lot 20, Block 23, Original Townsite as outlined in Cordova Municipal 

Code 5.22.060 B by #1 negotiating an agreement with Carl and Jane Jensen to lease or purchase the 

property.

Hallquist asked if there was a dollar amount. Greenwood answered questions for Council – she said that fair 

market value would be established and pursued in negotiations. 

M/Hallquist S/Wiese to amend to #2 invite sealed bids to lease or purchase the property.

After discussion of the difference between bids and proposals, Hallquist withdrew the amendment with 

concurrence of the second.

M/Hallquist S/Allison to amend to #4 invite sealed proposals to lease or purchase the property.

Vote on the motion to amend: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Motion approved.

Vote on the main motion as amended: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Motion approved.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

15 of 89



Proposal for Lot 20, Block 23, Original Townsite

Page 3 of 3

Applicable Code:

Section 5.22.060 – REVENUE AND FINANCE – DISPOSAL OF CITY REAL PROPERTY – 

Methods of disposal for fair market value.

D. A request for proposals to lease or purchase city real property shall specify the criteria upon 

which proposals will be evaluated and the minimum rent or purchase price. All proposals submitted 

in response to a request for proposals shall be reviewed by the planning commission, which shall 

make a recommendation to the city council to accept or decline any or all of the proposals. The city 

council shall review the proposals and the planning commission's recommendation and accept or 

decline any of the proposals.

Section 18.20.010 – ZONING – R LOW DENSITY RESIDENCE DISTRICT – Permitted uses.

The following uses are permitted in the R low-density district:

A. One-family, two-family and three-family dwellings;

B. Boardinghouses;

C. Truck gardening, the raising of bush and tree crops, flower gardening, and the use of 

greenhouses;

D. Home occupations;

E. Accessory buildings and uses not used or operated for gain and not including guest houses or 

accessory living quarters;

F. Required off-street parking.

A garage would be considered an accessory building to the neighboring house. A single accessory 

building is permitted on its own lot in the district, however it does create a situation where a lot with 

an accessory building can be sold making the building no longer accessory.

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

N/A

VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES:

N/A

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

The city owns the property between Lot 20 and the water tank. Lots 18 through 20 are currently available on 

the land disposal maps. All three of the lots exceed the minimum single family dwelling lots size.  The 

commission has had numerous discussions about the lack of affordable single family housing opportunities 

in the community. The commission should consider whether the proposal is the best use of the land.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

16 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

17 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

18 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

19 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

20 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

21 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

22 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

23 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

24 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

25 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

26 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

27 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

28 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

29 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

30 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

31 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

32 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

33 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

34 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

35 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

36 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

37 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

38 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

39 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

40 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

41 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

42 of 89

planner2
Rectangle

planner2
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

43 of 89

planner2
Rectangle



Site Plan Review – Dan Nichols

Page 1 of 5

AGENDA ITEM # 9c

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 3/28/2017

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 3/22/17

ITEM: Site Plan Review – Dan Nichols

NEXT STEP: Site Plan Review

      

_____ INFORMATION

__X__ MOTION

_____   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   

Requested Actions: Site Plan Review

Applicant: Dan Nichols

Address: 205 Industry Road

Legal Description: Lot 2, Block 3, Cordova Industrial Park

Parcel Number: 02-060-232

Zoning: Waterfront Industrial District

Lot Area: 17,501 sq. ft.

Dan Nichols is proposing to construct a warehouse facility. He has a Performance Deed of Trust with the 

city for the development of the property.

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

44 of 89



Site Plan Review – Dan Nichols

Page 2 of 5

“I move that the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council to approve the Site Plan Review 

requested by Dan Nichols to construct a warehouse on Lot 2, Block 3, Cordova Industrial Park based on 

the findings and with the special conditions as contained in the staff report.”

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

New structure expands city property tax base.

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

2/15/13 – Dan Nichols submitted a proposal for the lot and entered into a Performance Deed of Trust with the 

city.

2/15/17 – City Council extended substantial completion date to 9/1/17.

Applicable Code: 

Chapter 18.33 ZONING – WATERFRONT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

The following are the permitted principal uses and structures in the waterfront industrial district:

A. Marine sales;

B. Open wet moorage;

C. Covered wet moorage;

D. Passenger staging facility;

E. Haulout facilities;

F. Marine construction, repair and dismantling;

G. Cargo terminal;

H. Cargo handling and marine-oriented staging area;

I. Fish and seafood processing;

J. Warehousing and wholesaling;

K. Open storage for marine-related facilities;

L. Fuel storage and sales.

Half of the building will be used for boat repair and the other half as a market warehouse. Warehousing and 

marine repair are permitted principal uses for the district.

Section 18.42.010 ZONING – SITE PLAN REVIEW – Purpose.

Whenever required by this code or the city council, a site plan review shall be completed by the 

planning commission with a recommendation to the city council. Prior to the issuance of a building 

permit, the city council must approve the site plan for the project.

Section 18.42.030 ZONING – SITE PLAN REVIEW – Required Information.

The site plan to be submitted as required herein shall contain the following information. If any of the 

information requested herein is not applicable to a given project, the reasons for the non-

applicability of the information requested shall be stated in the site plan:

1. Name, address and phone number of owner/developer;

2. Legal description of property;

3. A scale of not less than 1″ = 20′;

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

45 of 89



Site Plan Review – Dan Nichols

Page 3 of 5

4. Date, north point and scale;

5. The dimensions of all lot and property lines, showing the relationship of the subject property to 

abutting properties;

6. The zoning and siting of all structures on the subject property and abutting properties;

7. The location of each proposed structure in the development area, the use or uses to be contained 

therein, the number of stories, gross building area, distances between structures and lot lines, setback 

lines and approximate location of vehicular entrances and loading points;

8. The location of all existing and proposed drives and parking areas with the number of parking 

and/or loading spaces provided and the location and right-of-way widths of all abutting streets;

9. Location and height of all walls, fences and screen plantings, including a general plan for the 

landscaping of the development and the method by which landscaping is to be accomplished and be 

maintained;

10. Types of surfacing, such as paving, turfing or gravel to be used at the various locations;

11. A grading plan of the area demonstrating the proposed method of storm drainage;

12. Size and location of proposed sewer and water lines and connections;

13. Front and side elevations of proposed structures;

14. Exterior finish and color.

Chapter 18.48 ZONING – OFF-STREET PARKING, LOADING AND UNLOADING

Warehouse uses require “One parking space for every one thousand square feet of gross building area.” The 

proposed building requires 14 parking spaces. The proposed plans show 14 parking spaces, although some 

are in the snow removal area, some would not be accessible during loading and unloading, and some are 

shown in van/truck parking locations. There are only seven parking spaces (five on north side and two in each 

western corner) that would be available year round. Per 18.48.080, “the planning commission may reduce the 

required number of parking spaces if the commission determines that an unreasonable amount parking 

spaces is required or that the required number of spaces does not meet the city's development goals or its 

land use needs.”  The letter submitted by the applicant provides justification for seven parking spaces as there 

would only be four employees at the building at once. Staff concur that 14 parking spaces seems excessive for 

the building and that seven is sufficient for the use. 

The minimum off-street loading space required is one “at least ten feet wide and thirty-eight feet long.” The 

loading space on the Industry Road side of the building exceeds this size and meets the needs of all of the 

vans and box trucks to be used on the property. 

Special Conditions:

1. The Planning Department must be in receipt of an approved Plan Review from the State of Alaska 

Fire Marshal prior to issuance of a Building Permit.

2. The Planning Department must be in receipt of an approved Water/Sewer Connection Permit prior to 

issuance of a Building Permit.

3. Drainage measures will be taken to prevent runoff from impacting adjacent properties. Public Works 

will review and approve of the drainage plan.

4. Jim Poor Avenue and Industry Road right of ways will not be used at any time for storage, 

loading/unloading, or as a snow dump.

5. The building will have a minimum of seven parking spaces, which the commission reduced from 14.

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

46 of 89



Site Plan Review – Dan Nichols

Page 4 of 5

N/A

VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES:

N/A

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

N/A

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

47 of 89



Site Plan Review – Dan Nichols

Page 5 of 5

Attachment A – Location Map

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

48 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

49 of 89

planner2
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

50 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

51 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

52 of 89



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

5
3

 o
f 8

9



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

54 of 89

planner2
Snapshot



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

5
5

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

5
6

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

5
7

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

5
8

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

5
9

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

6
0

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

6
1

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

6
2

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

6
3

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

6
4

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

6
5

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

6
6

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

6
7

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

6
8

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

6
9

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

7
0

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

7
1

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

7
2

 o
f 8

9



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

73 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

74 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

75 of 89



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

7
6

 o
f 8

9



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

7
7

 o
f 8

9



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

78 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

79 of 89



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

80 of 89

planner2
Text Box
Van/Truck Parking Plan



Chapter 16 Building Codes Discussion 

Page 1 of 3

AGENDA ITEM # 9d

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 3/28/2017

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 3/28/2017

ITEM: Chapter 16 Building Codes Discussion

NEXT STEP: N/A

      

__X__ INFORMATION

_____ MOTION

_____   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   

Determining design criteria and review comments on Alaska amendments.  

Here is a link to an on-line version of the 2012 IRC or we have a copy in the office.

https://ia800701.us.archive.org/8/items/gov.law.icc.irc.2012/icc.irc.2012.pdfv

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

Determine the 

1. Local design criteria- chapter 3 Table R301.2(1).

2. Review Alaska amendments.

Design Criteria

 A design criteria has been developed and is attached. The IRC provides the table for design 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

81 of 89

https://ia800701.us.archive.org/8/items/gov.law.icc.irc.2012/icc.irc.2012.pdfv


Chapter 16 Building Codes Discussion 

Page 2 of 3

criteria for the local community to fill in and adopt.  The city may make local amendments that are 

less restive than the requirements in the IRC 2012.  Design criteria to discuss

1. Snow Load – Section R301.2.3 Snow Loads- City has required be built to 100 lbs ground 

snow load. IRC says anything over 70 lbs shall be designed with in accordance with acceptable 

engineer standards.

2. Wind speed design is required.  The map (attached) shows Cordova at 110 mph. 

3. Topographical effects- No - open to discussion

4. The Seismic category map on page 29 of the IRC(attached) designates Cordova in the D2 seismic 

zone, in   the past it had been labeled Seismic D.  Page 46 of the IRC provides the requirements 

for the D2 zones.  For zone D2 there is restrictions on materials (use of N motor or masonry 

cement is not allowed) used for wall construction in 606.12.4. 

5. Weathering Alaska is designated severe by IRC 

6. Frost line depth – in the past 24” was the depth agreed upon…open for discussion 

7. Termite – designated in IRC

8. Winter Design Temp 1 degree F - chart attached used for determination- used Juneau for data

9. Ice Barrier underlayment required – No 

10.  Flood Hazards – from City records

11. Entry into National Flood Insurance Program – 1979, Map panels and flood study adopted   

2015

12. Air Freezing Index – 2500-  Cordova was not in table used for Yakutat

13. Mean Annual Temperature 38 F - From Climate -data.org

Alaska Amendments to 2012 IRC code 

Deleting of Part 2 will involve adding/deleting of the City Code.  Attached is a spreadsheet of my initial 

review of the city code and part 2 of the IRC and the remaining amendments.  

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

Possible legal review depending on the local amendments. 

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

2/14/2017 - at P&Z meeting it was decided to move forward to adopt the 2012 IRC. Amendments developed 

by AHFC were presented for commissioners. Links to three communities that have adopted the 2012 

IRC and have local amendments were sent to commissioners for review. 

  

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

Updating only the edition of IRC and local amendments may be done without legal review. Once all local 

amendments have been developed and the building permit sections of code are reviewed, a determination will 

be made.  

VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES:

N/A

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

82 of 89



Chapter 16 Building Codes Discussion 

Page 3 of 3

N/A

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

83 of 89



DESIGN CRITERIA
In accordance with the International Residential Code (IRC)

Design Type Criteria

Ground Snow Load 100 lbs. per sq. foot

Wind Speed 110 miles per hour

Topographical effects No

Seismic Zone D2

Weathering Severe

Frost Line Depth 24”

Termite No

Winter Design Temperature 1 F

Ice Barrier underlayment required No

Flood Hazards Entered flood program 1979, maps and flood study 

adopted 2015

Air Freezing Index 2500

Mean Annual Temperature 42 F

CITY OF CORDOVA

City of Cordova

602 Railroad Ave.

P.O. Box 1210

Cordova, Alaska  99574

Phone: (907) 424-6220

Fax: (907) 424-6000

Email: planning2@cityofcordova.net

Web: www.cityofcordova.net

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

84 of 89

mailto:planning2@cityofcordova.net
http://www.cityofcordova.net/


P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

8
5

 o
f 8

9



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

86 of 89



P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

8
7

 o
f 8

9



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 28, 2017

88 of 89



SUNDAY
FIRST DAY OF WEEK

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

26 27 28 29 30 31 01

02 03 04 05 06 07 08

7:00 PM - City Council Regular

Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

09 10 11 12 13 14 15

6:30 PM - Planning Commission 7:00 PM - Harbor Commission 5:00 PM - Historic Preservation

Regular Meeting Regular Meeting Commission Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B) (Cordova Center Room B) (Cordova Center Room B)

7:00 PM - School Board Regular 7:00 PM - CCMC Board

Meeting Regular Meeting

(High School Library) (Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

7:00 PM - City Council Regular

Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

6:00 PM - Parks and Recreation

Commission Regular Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

30 01 02 03 04 05 06

2017 APRIL

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
 2

8
, 2

0
1

7

8
9

 o
f 8

9


	03-28-17 Agenda_0
	02-14-17 Regular Meeting Minutes_0
	170214 - Letter from Dan Nichols
	03_28_2016_Planners Report_0
	Memo - Street Rename_0
	Memo - Proposal for Lot 20, Block 23, OT_0
	RFP for Lot 20, Block 23, OT for packet
	Jensen Proposal
	Memo - Nichols Site Plan Review_0
	Application
	Eng Drawings for packet
	170315 Final Harvill Drawings
	170322 Letter
	Van pARKING
	Memo_ch16_buildingCodes_0
	Design Criteria_0
	SeismicZoneMapp
	WindSpeedMap
	WindSpeedMap2
	winterDesignTemp
	April Calendar

